

Council Assembly (Ordinary meeting)

MINUTES of the Council Assembly (Ordinary meeting) held on Wednesday 24 November 2021 at 7.00 pm at Council Offices, 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH

PRESENT:

The Worshipful the Mayor for 2021-22, Councillor Barrie Hargrove (Chair)

Councillor Evelyn Akoto
Councillor Humaira Ali
Councillor Peter Babudu
Councillor Maggie Browning
Councillor Radha Burgess
Councillor Victor Chamberlain
Councillor Sunil Chopra
Councillor James Coldwell
Councillor Stephanie Cryan
Councillor Helen Dennis

Councillor Dora Dixon-Fvle MBE

Councillor Nick Dolezal
Councillor Karl Eastham
Councillor Gavin Edwards
Councillor Paul Fleming
Councillor Tom Flynn
Councillor Renata Hamvas
Councillor Jon Hartley
Councillor William Houngbo
Councillor Sirajul Islam

Councillor Peter John OBE
Councillor Nick Johnson
Councillor Eleanor Kerslake
Councillor Sarah King
Councillor Sunny Lambe
Councillor Richard Leeming
Councillor Maria Linforth-Hall

Councillor Richard Livingstone Councillor Rebecca Lury Councillor Alice Macdonald Councillor Eliza Mann Councillor James McAsh Councillor Hamish McCallum Councillor Darren Merrill Councillor Adele Morris Councillor Graham Neale Councillor Margy Newens Councillor David Noakes Councillor Leo Pollak Councillor Sandra Rhule Councillor Catherine Rose Councillor Jane Salmon Councillor Martin Seaton Councillor Andy Simmons Councillor Michael Situ Councillor Charlie Smith Councillor Cleo Soanes

Councillor Leanne Werner

Councillor Dan Whitehead

Councillor Kieron Williams

Councillor Kath Whittam

Councillor Bill Williams

Councillor Ian Wingfield

1. PRELIMINARY BUSINESS

1.1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Jasmine Ali, Anood Al-Samerai, Jack Buck, Lorraine Lauder, Vikki Mills, Damian O'Brien, Jason Ochere and Victoria Olisa.

Apologies for lateness were received from Councillors Karl Eastham, Paul Fleming, and Rebecca Lury.

1.2 ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM THE MAYOR, MEMBERS OF THE CABINET OR CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The Mayor announced the sad death of Bill Skelly, Mayor of Southwark from 1997-1998.

Councillors Ian Wingfield and David Noakes gave tribute. The meeting held a minute's silence in his memory.

Councillor Evelyn Akoto, Councillor Leanne Werner, Councillor Kieron Williams and Councillor Maria Linforth-Hall commemorated the 16 Days of Activism against gender-based violence starting on 25 November 2021.

1.3 NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE MAYOR DEEMS URGENT

At this point, the programme motion was agreed:

The order of business and timings for the evening will be as follows:

Time	Business
19:00 – 19:10	1. Preliminary business and announcements
19:10 – 19:25	Late Motion 7 - Transport for London funding
19:25 – 19:30	2.2 Public question time
	Emma Dobinson
19:30 – 20:30	Themed debate
	3.1 Community Evidence
(25 minutes -	Emma Trueman, Global Generation
4 minutes'	 Jack Skillen, Team London Bridge
speech)	Southwark Youth Parliament
	Jeremy Brackpool
	Alan Jones, Sustainable Energy 24 (SE24)

	3.2 Motion on the Theme
(7 minutes)	1. Councillor Helen Dennis, Cabinet member for
,	Climate Emergency and Sustainable Development
(5 minutes)	2. Councillor Adele Morris, opposition spokesperson,
(6 111111111111111111111111111111111111	to speak on the motion and move Amendment A
(20 minutes)	3. Themed debate open to all other councillors
(3 minutes)	4. Cabinet member's right of reply to the debate
20:30 – 21:00	4. Deputation requests
20.30 - 21.00	Living Streets and Southwark Cyclists
	,
	Pauline Nandoo, Southwark Day Centre for Asylum
	Seekers
	Hadi Sharifi, British Afghan Society
21:00 – 21:20	Motion 2 - Responding to the Afghan Refugee Crisis and
	Supporting Refugees and Asylum Seekers (cross-party)
21:20 – 21:55	5.1 Members' Question Time
(5 minutes)	Late questions
(15 minutes)	Members' questions to the leader
(15 minutes)	Members' questions to the cabinet
21:55 - 22:15	5.2 Motions
	Motion 1 - A Roadmap for Clean Streets in Southwark
	Motion 3 - Refusing Unsafe Building Developers
	Motion 4 - Youth Democracy
	Motion 5 - UNESCO World Heritage Status for Borough,
	Bankside and the Wider Area
	Motion 6 - Centenary Celebrations for Ada and Alfred
	Salter (cross-party)
22:15*	6. Reports
	6.1 New civic award - Diversity
	6.2 Treasury management - mid-year update 2021-22
	6.3 Waiver of six month councillor attendance rule -
	section 85 of local government act 1972
	6.4 Re-appointment of independent person
22:15*	Closed session (only if required for debate)
££.13	8 Re-appointment of independent person
	o ve-abboliminem or independent beizon

^{*} subject to the guillotine rule; maximum 15 minutes debate per item. **Note:** Any time left remaining on any item will be rolled into the next items.

That the meeting be conducted as follows:

Guillotine

To extend the guillotine by 15 minutes to 10.15pm

Item 3 - Themed debate

Community Evidence Submissions

To receive submissions from the groups listed in the themed section of the agenda:

- Emma Trueman, Global Generation
- Jack Skillen, Team London Bridge
- Southwark Youth Parliament
- Jeremy Brackpool
- Alan Jones, Sustainable Energy 24 (SE24)

Format

A four minute presentation from the group.

Themed debate

To run as listed in the timings above.

Item 4 - Deputations

That the meeting agree to hear deputations from:

- Living Streets and Southwark Cyclists
- Pauline Nandoo, Southwark Day Centre for Asylum Seekers
- Hadi Sharifi, British Afghan Society

(Five minutes to speak; deputation question to relevant cabinet member, one question from each group)

Item 5.2 General motions:

Each motion to have a single debate, subject to the guillotine.

That the meeting agree to **vary the order of business** to hear Motion 2 after item 4: Deputation requests.

That the meeting agree to **accept** late Motion 7.

That the meeting agree to vary the mover of Motion 3 to Councillor Dan Whitehead

That the meeting agree to **vary the seconder** of Motion 5 to Councillor Damian O'Brien

That the meeting agree to **vary the seconder** of Motion 6 to Councillor Eliza Mann That the meeting agree to **vary the mover** of Amendment F to Councillor Nick Johnson

That the meeting agree to **vary the seconder** of Amendment F to Councillor Hamish McCallum

1.4 DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS

The following councillors were granted a dispensation by the monitoring officer to vote on item 5.2, Motion 3 and Amendment C:

Councillors Humaira Ali, Peter Babudu, Jack Buck, Victor Chamberlain, Sunil Chopra, Karl Eastham, Richard Leeming, Eliza Mann, James McAsh, Hamish McCallum, David Noakes, Damien O'Brien, Jane Salmon and Dan Whitehead.

The following councillors declared a disclosable pecuniary interest in Motion 3 and Amendment C: Councillor Stephanie Cryan, as a leaseholder of Optivo Housing, and Councillor Sandra Rhule, as a resident in Optivo Housing.

1.5 MINUTES

RESOLVED:

The minutes of the ordinary meeting of council assembly held on 14 July 2021 were agreed as a correct record with two amendments:

Duncan Whitfield was granted an OBE, not an MBE Councillor Humaira Ali gave her apologies by reason of self-isolation due to Covid-19.

2. ISSUES RAISED BY THE PUBLIC

2.1 PETITIONS

There were no petitions.

2.2 PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

(See page 1 of supplemental agenda 1 and additional papers circulated at the meeting)

There was one question from the public, the answer to which had been circulated before the meeting. The public questioner did not ask a supplemental question.

3. THEMED DEBATE

3.1 COMMUNITY EVIDENCE

The meeting agreed to receive submissions from the following:

Emma Trueman, Global Generation

The representative spoke to the meeting for four minutes.

Jack Skillen, Team London Bridge

The representative spoke to the meeting for four minutes.

Southwark Youth Parliament

The representatives spoke to the meeting for four minutes.

Jeremy Brackpool

The representative spoke to the meeting for four minutes.

Alan Jones, Sustainable Energy 24

The representative spoke to the meeting for four minutes.

3.2 MOTION ON THE THEME

The cabinet member for the climate emergency and sustainable development, Councillor Helen Dennis, presented the motion in the themed debate.

Councillor Adele Morris, the majority opposition group spokesperson, responded to the motion and proposed Amendment A.

Following debate (Councillors Margy Newens, James McAsh, Graham Neale, Sunil Chopra, Humaira Ali, James Coldwell, Victor Chamberlain, Hamish McCallum and Kieron Williams), Councillor Helen Dennis responded to the debate.

Amendment A was put to the vote and declared to be Lost.

The motion was put to the vote and declared to be <u>Carried</u>.

RESOLVED:

Climate Justice: A Green Future For All

- 1. Council Assembly notes:
 - a) That the climate crisis requires urgent global action to keep warming below 1.5 degrees and to avoid the catastrophic consequences of temperatures rising beyond this, as set out by the Inter-Governmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC).
 - b) That the UK along with other wealthier countries has a particular responsibility to reduce emissions, being responsible for a larger proportion of both current and historic emissions, and notes the government's legally binding target to reduce emissions by 78% by 2035 and to be net zero by 2050, along with this borough's ambition to be a carbon neutral borough by 2030.
 - c) That in a warming world, Southwark is particularly vulnerable to extreme weather events and to flooding, as an urban borough which is bordered by the Thames in the north with flat and low-lying land beneath this, with 60% of residents living less than 10 metres above sea level.
 - d) That according to a recent global survey three quarters of young people now feel frightened about their future as a result of climate change. In London, 82% of residents are concerned about climate change, with 66% saying they have become increasingly concerned in the last year.
 - e) That UK government plans including their Net Zero Strategy, are too little, too late, and fail to provide adequate funding for local authorities to deliver on a just transition, especially in the area of social housing decarbonisation which could help reduce fuel bills for residents.
 - f) That the government's record speaks for itself: scrapping the planned zero carbon homes standard, ending the feed-in tariff, continuing to pursue oil and gas exploration, a dodgy trade deal with Australia, and a failed Green Homes Grant. Failing to regulate properly and invest, leaving everything to the whim of the market. And a Prime Minister who doesn't think twice about taking a private jet to Cornwall.
 - g) That the recent Spending Review barely mentioned climate change, whilst halving air passenger duty for domestic flights and freezing fuel duty, just days before COP26 began.
- 2. Council Assembly further notes:
 - That despite a lack of leadership from government, local communities and local authorities are stepping up to make ambitious commitments to

bring about change.

- b) That Southwark declared a climate emergency in 2019, accelerating work that was already underway to reduce emissions, and that the council's operational emissions have already halved since 2018.
- c) That the council has published its Climate Change Strategy and Action Plan, with 85 priority actions which will put us on the path towards net zero by 2030.
- d) That we have already made excellent progress on much of this, including:
 - i. Buildings installing water-source heat pumps on three of our estates to serve over 2100 homes; bringing forward new passivhaus council homes in Rotherhithe; delivering retrofit work to street properties and the Tustin towers; greening our council buildings including by installing heat pumps in libraries; strengthening our planning policies through the New Southwark Plan and establishing a new Green Buildings Fund to retrofit our community buildings.
 - ii. Transport doubling cycle storage to 500 hangars next year, delivering 4 kilometres of cycleways, installing over 260 electric vehicle charging points with more planned this year; 36 school streets and 11 street space schemes to promote active travel; and major upgrades to London Bridge, Denmark Hill, Elephant and Castle and Peckham stations.
 - iii. Natural environment planted over 8,000 new trees last year alone, supported biodiversity through its 'no-mow' policy, creating 200 new food growing plots on estates, opened the new Elephant Park, invested in renewing Burgess Park, Camberwell Green and Dickens' Fields, started to consult on Bramcote Park, and retained 30 Green Flag parks the most in inner London. Through the New Southwark Plan, the council is creating 17 new sites of importance for nature conservation, ensuring biodiversity net gain in development, and creating 11 hectares of new protected open space.
 - iv. Circular and Green Economy pledged to create 5000 green jobs between now and 2030; ended the pension fund's direct investments in fossil fuels with a target to be 100% fossil fuel free by 2030; and maintained one of the best recycling rates in inner London, up from the 6th worst recycling rate in the country in 2010.

- v. Renewable and Sustainable Energy rolled out LED street lighting, switched to 100% renewable electricity in council buildings, supported the expansion of South East London Combined Heat and Power (SELCHP), sought to maximise renewable energy generation through new developments, and have started to install solar photovoltaic systems on council buildings.
- e) We are investing an additional £25 million of capital funding into carbon reduction projects which will include among other things, electrification of our council fleet, further decarbonisation of council buildings including leisure centres when these are brought in house, and the expansion of measures to support the borough's climate resilience.
- f) That the council is supporting a citizens' jury on climate change, which will bring together a group of people who are representative of the borough's demographics to make recommendations on how the borough can further respond to the climate emergency.
- g) That the analysis underpinning the Climate Strategy and Action Plan estimates that capital investment of £3.92 billion is required for Southwark alone and that the government must therefore demonstrate its seriousness to this agenda by fully partnering with and resourcing local authorities.
- h) That the lack of a long-term funding settlement with TfL is damaging to our efforts to become a carbon neutral borough, putting important projects on hold such as the Bakerloo Line Extension, the Rotherhithe Bridge, bus service enhancements and electrification, and active travel infrastructure.
- 3. Council Assembly celebrates and thanks:
 - a) The community organisations and projects who have worked hard to bring down carbon emissions locally and protect Southwark from climate change; we applaud you and are grateful to be hearing from some of these groups today.
- 4. Council Assembly resolves to call on Cabinet to:
 - a) Continue working with the community and local businesses to build upon Southwark's climate action plan and ensure collectively we are doing everything we can with the resources we have to achieve net zero by 2030. This work must have a strong focus on decarbonising Southwark's buildings, and moving away from petrol and diesel vehicles.

- b) Go further in addressing and resourcing action to address the related ecological emergency, building on the existing Southwark Nature Action Plan, to see further flourishing of nature and biodiversity across the borough.
- c) Review Southwark's planning policies in line with our aim to be a carbon neutral borough by 2030, including through the establishment of a local carbon offset price.
- d) Work to implement all the recommendations of Southwark's Climate Change Citizens Jury within the council's capacity, and work with all concerned stakeholders to respond to the Jury's recommendations.
- e) Protect Southwark residents from the impacts of climate change by bringing forward an Adaptation Plan in 2022 which will consider:
 - i. An increased population due to climate refugees and displaced citizens.
 - ii. The urban heat island effect which we are already experiencing in London.
 - iii. Flooding and other extreme weather.
 - iv. Public health risks including new diseases.
 - v. Water scarcity and food shortages for residents.
- f)Strengthen its lobbying efforts, working with the Local Government Association and networks like UK100, to push the government for the more ambitious national action and funding that is urgently needed to address the climate emergency.

4. **DEPUTATIONS**

As part of the programme motion the meeting agreed to hear deputations from:

Living Streets and Southwark Cyclists

The group's representatives spoke to the meeting for five minutes.

Two members asked questions of the deputation.

Pauline Nandoo, Southwark Day Centre for Asylum Seekers

The group's representatives spoke to the meeting for five minutes and thereafter asked a question of the cabinet member for equalities, neighbourhoods and leisure.

Two members asked questions of the deputation.

Hadi Sharifi, British Afghan Society

The group's representatives spoke to the meeting for five minutes and thereafter asked a question of the cabinet member for equalities, neighbourhoods and leisure.

Two members asked questions of the deputation.

5. ISSUES RAISED BY MEMBERS

5.1 MEMBERS' QUESTION TIME

There was one late question to the leader from Councillor Hamish McCallum, the written response to which was circulated by email before the meeting. There were two supplemental questions.

There were 28 members' questions, the written responses to which were circulated by email before the meeting. There were nine supplemental questions.

5.2 MEMBERS' MOTIONS

Motion 1: A roadmap for clean streets for Southwark

This motion was considered after the guillotine having fallen.

There was one amendment to the motion.

Amendment B was put to the vote and declared to be carried.

The substantive motion was put to the vote and declared to be <u>carried</u>.

Note: This motion will be referred as a recommendation to the cabinet for consideration.

- 1. Council assembly observes that:
 - a) The UK has significant issues with rubbish. According to Greenpeace, the country produces more plastic waste per person than any other country bar the US. Official statistics revealed that

- the UK only recycled around 44% of waste in 2018, below the EU average. The German rate was 67%.
- b) Charity Keep Britain Tidy estimates that two million pieces of rubbish are dropped every day across the country. The street cleaning cost of this is £1bn annually. On average, 14 calls a day are made to the RSPCA regarding wildlife harmed by litter.
- c) Seven million tonnes of food and drink are thrown away each year, most of which could have been consumed. Experts say that food waste contributes 8-10% of global greenhouse gas emissions
- d) In an article earlier this year, the Sunday Mirror reported that flytipping in Britain has jumped by more than 500%. This has a large impact on the environment as damaged fridges and freezers let out ozone-harming gases.

2. Council assembly notes that:

- a) Since 2010, the Labour administration has turned around a falling recycling rate, cleaned our streets and maintained a high rate of collection. The last set of formally published results were for 2019/20 when we achieved a 35.14% recycling rate. The recycling rate achieved was the best of the 13 inner London councils.
- b) Since Labour took control of the council, Southwark has had ambitious recycling targets and the council's recycling rates are a huge improvement on the pitiful Liberal Democrat/Conservative record from pre-2010, when the council had the sixth worst recycling rate in the country.
- c) The council's waste management team has taken significant steps to tackle fly tipping in the borough, including the setting up of a new fly tipping task force. Between April and September 2021, 98.6% of fly tipping incidents were cleared within 24 hours of reporting to the council's waste management team.
- d) During the Covid-19 pandemic, there was significant staff absence from the waste management team, as staff were either unwell or isolating. Despite these significant challenges, and more latterly the impact of the HGV driver shortage, the full range of waste collection services have continued to be deployed throughout. The waste collections teams have worked hard under unprecedented conditions to ensure the mainstay of the collection services were kept operational.

- e) The waste management team has now recovered to its pre-pandemic level of performance and is delivering higher overall performance, with missed collections now at below 50 per 100,000, which is on target.
- f) Councillors across the borough are supporting fantastic initiatives to reduce litter on our streets and in our parks, including by working with organisations such as Plastic Free East Dulwich and Plastic Free Peckham and via the Empowering Communities Programme.
- 3. Council assembly calls on the cabinet to:
 - a) To continue to be ambitious for recycling in Southwark and maintain our place as one of the highest recycling rates in inner London
 - b) When the new Environment bill becomes law, to utilise the new powers to further maximise the recycling rate.
 - c) To investigate the use of new technology to improve waste collection and recycling rates, including recycling of food waste.
 - d) To investigate new means of creatively reducing, collecting and disposing of food and garden waste including incentivising, supporting and encouraging an increase in home composting by residents across the borough.
 - e) To improve accessibility and ease of use of Southwark's reuse and recycling centre in order to make disposing of waste easier, specifically by making such adjustments with the purpose of making the centre more accessible for residents who are digitally excluded and those who do not have access to a car.
 - f) To implement the plan to improve bin collection rates, including improvements to IT reporting systems, so residents are able to easily report missed bin collections, and more effective monitoring of problem areas to prevent repeat missed bin collections.

Motion 2: Responding to the Afghan Refugee Crisis and Supporting Refugees and Asylum Seekers

This motion was considered prior to the guillotine having fallen.

Councillor Dora Dixon-Fyle moved the motion. Councillor David Noakes seconded the motion.

There were no amendments to the motion.

Following debate (Councillors Alice Macdonald, William Houngbo), the motion was put to the vote and declared to be <u>carried</u>.

Note: This motion will be referred as a recommendation to the cabinet for consideration.

1. Council assembly notes:

- a) Afghanistan has undergone a devastating and avoidable tragedy and continues to face a humanitarian and political crisis. Our thoughts are with all those forced to flee their homes, with the families and loved ones of those killed and wounded and those who are suffering in and still trying to escape Afghanistan including the families of many Southwark residents. We continue to have particular concern for women and girls and for Afghan people who have supported the British civil and military authorities in their country in various ways.
- b) More than 15,000 Afghans were evacuated to the UK before 31 August. The majority of those refugees have since been placed in bridging hotels 30 % have been placed in bridging hotels in London including here in Southwark.
- c) London boroughs have been integral to providing wraparound support. Without the work of local government, thousands of Afghans would not have had their basic needs met and children would not be accessing play and education. It is equally clear that without local government, resettlement will be impossible.
- d) In the context of a decade of cuts to local government funding and drastic cuts imposed on our own budget in Southwark, it is imperative that government provides adequate funding to councils to support refugees and does not let the burden fall on already stretched local authorities.
- e) That beyond the recent Afghanistan crisis London boroughs are already supporting thousands of asylum seekers in contingency hotels. This includes Southwark where there has been a lack of meaningful consultation and coordination with Southwark Council.
- 2. Council assembly further notes that Southwark Council:
 - a) Has a long and proud history of supporting people fleeing persecution overseas and is committed to becoming a Borough of

Sanctuary.

- b) Has committed to welcome Afghan refugees to our borough under the new Afghan Citizens Resettlement Scheme (ACRS) and is in the process of identifying long-term accommodation. We are proud to have worked through London Councils to agree and sign up to the principle of all London boroughs providing long term homes.
- c) Had already committed to participate in the previous Afghan Relocations and Assistance Policy (ARAP) and have resettled families through the Syrian Vulnerable Persons Resettlement Scheme.
- d) Is already providing wraparound support to Afghan refugees placed by the Home Office in temporary hotel accommodation in our borough. We are working with local partners and Afghan community leaders to provide the appropriate support including mental health provision, English language lessons, co-ordinating school places for children, help registering with a GP and enabling access to our libraries and leisure centres.

3. Council assembly thanks

- a) All the voluntary and community organisations and residents who have offered their support and donated time, money and energy to make refugees welcome. This includes Panjshir Aid, Community Southwark, the Southwark Day Centre for Asylum Seekers and Refugees, Little Village, the Red Cross, the Southwark Refugees and Communities forum and many more.
- b) Our local Members of Parliament Neil Coyle, Harriet Harman and Helen Hayes and their staff for all their work to support Afghan refugees and their families.
- 4. Council assembly calls on the British Government to:
 - a) Provide greater clarity to Afghan refugees about their future in the UK and resolve delays in the process to match Afghan families with accommodation identified by local authorities. People are stuck in hotels - including here in Southwark - with no idea how long they will be there or a say over their future.
 - b) Provide adequate resources to local authorities to support refugees in the short and the long term. This must include finalising the funding for the wraparound support in bridging hotels, and ensuring that local authorities are paid for supporting all bridging hotel

residents, including British nationals.

- c) Provide British nationals with resettlement support aligned with ARAP and ACRS, and address concerns around homelessness applications.
- d) Ensure that boroughs are consulted on the processes involved in standing down bridging hotels.
- e) Work with local authorities to achieve a more equitable asylum system and end the hostile environment.
- f) Keep UK borders open to receive asylum seekers from Afghanistan and not deport any undocumented Afghans in accordance with the United Nations High Commissioner for Refugees (UNHCR) non-return advisory. Immediately expand eligibility for family reunion enabling family members who have relatives in the UK to travel safely to join them and quickly decide all asylum claims from Afghans who have arrived in the UK independently, including reviewing previously refused claims.
- g) Abandon their damaging plans to introduce a two tier refugee system under the Nationality and Borders Bill. The government should treat each arrival in the UK based on their needs not how they got here and provide proper support to people in need of sanctuary. The UK must adhere to Article 31 of the Refugee Convention that prohibits penalties being imposed on Refugees who enter or are present in a country without authorisation.
- 5. Council assembly calls on the cabinet to:
 - a) Continue to support refugees and asylum seekers in Southwark.
 - b) Call on the government to provide the resources required and to provide clarity on the status of and future of the resettlement scheme.
 - c) Continue to work with London Councils to coordinate support and ensure that councils across London as well as the UK are all playing an equal part in responding to this international emergency.
 - d) Continue to work with local organisations and community leaders to support refugees in our Borough and respond to their needs.

At the conclusion of the debate on the Motion, the meeting held a minute's silence in memory of all those who lost their life in the channel tragedy earlier in the day.

Motion 3: Refusing Unsafe Building Developers

This motion was considered after the guillotine having fallen.

There was one amendment to the motion.

Amendment C was put to the vote and declared to be carried.

The substantive motion was put to the vote and declared to be carried.

Note: This motion will be referred as a recommendation to the cabinet for consideration.

1. Council assembly notes:

- a) The significant financial and health impacts of the building safety crisis on thousands of Londoners.
- b) Although changes are being touted, support from central government for properties with dangerous cladding has to date been wholly insufficient to deal with the building safety crisis.
- c) That the UK Government must do more to protect leaseholders in the building safety crisis and must ensure remediation work is completed as soon as possible on all affected properties.

2. Council Assembly acknowledges that:

- a) The council has been lobbying for building safety reforms and an end to the cladding scandal for a number of years, including lobbying for increased funding for retrofitting social housing to comply with fire and building safety legislation in the 2021 Spending Review.
- b) The council is the largest landlord of high rise blocks in England with 170 residential buildings of 18m or higher. The safety of our residents is our absolute priority and a Building Safety programme is being implemented with a learning and discovery pilot taking place at Andoversford Court in Peckham.
- c) The council is working closely with the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities and the London Fire Brigade to ensure that private landlords remove aluminium composite material (ACM) cladding from their blocks. We are also using our powers to serve enforcement notices on building owners where remediation actions are not taken.

d) The council have been working closely with the Salmon Youth Centre in Bermondsey, supporting them in their successful application to the Building Safety Fund to remove cladding and acknowledges the support of the Leader of the Council in contacting the Secretary of State on their behalf.

3. Council Assembly also acknowledges that:

- a) Southwark, like the rest of London, is facing a housing crisis, with 16,000 households in the borough on our waiting list, including 3,200 who are homeless and living in temporary accommodation.
- b) We are reliant on the social housing sector and housing associations to deliver the homes our residents need.
- c) Whilst action is needed urgently on building safety, it is wrong to pit the interests of people who are in urgent need of new homes against the needs of leaseholders who are facing unfair costs of building safety work. Both of these groups need solutions which can ultimately, only be provided by central government, including greater funding.

4. Council Assembly therefore resolves to:

- a) Continue to work with London Councils and the GLA to put pressure on government to do more to protect leaseholders, to ensure that they do not bear the cost of the building safety works and to provide funding to ensure that remediation works can be completed as soon as possible.
- b) Actively engage with our local MPs to push for amendments to the Building Safety Bill to protect leaseholders from additional costs and to establish a new public works agency to oversee cladding remediation.
- c) Continue to support leaseholders in Southwark who are affected by the building safety crisis, including carrying out enforcement of landlords not complying with the removal of cladding.

Motion 4: Youth Democracy

This motion was considered after the guillotine having fallen.

There was one amendment to the motion.

Amendment D was put to the vote and declared to be <u>lost</u>.

The substantive motion was put to the vote and declared to be <u>carried</u>.

Note: This motion will be referred as a recommendation to the cabinet for consideration.

1. Council assembly notes:

- a) Young people aged 16-24 are the age group that is least likely to vote in elections, as demonstrated by the turnout of 47% amongst 18-24 year olds compared to 74% amongst the over 65s at the 2019 general election.
- b) Despite these low election turnout figures, young people today are often leading the fight on the important political issues of our times, such as the climate school strikes and the Black Lives Matter movement.
- c) The Elections Bill 2021 includes provision for the requirement of photographic ID at polling stations, which is likely to act as a form of voter suppression, particularly amongst groups who are already the least likely to vote.

2. Council assembly welcomes the fact that:

- a) In July 2021, Southwark Council created the Southwark Youth Parliament, which is for young people aged 14 to 19. Two candidates from each Southwark school and two candidates from ten community areas were successfully elected, along with Southwark's first-ever Youth Leader and Deputy Youth Leader.
- b) The Welsh government has successfully lowered the voting age to 16 in Wales via the Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021. This meant 16 and 17 year olds in Wales were able to participate in the recent Senedd and local council elections in May 2021.

3. Council assembly believes:

- a) Young people's participation in politics is essential to our democracy.
- b) More needs to be done to support young people to engage in politics on a local and national scale.

4. Council assembly calls on the cabinet to:

a) Continue to support the good work of Southwark's Youth Parliament.

- b) Put in place measures to make voter registration easy and accessible for all Southwark residents ahead of any future elections, in an effort to increase voter turnout.
- 5. Council assembly calls on the government to:
 - a) Support legislation that would lower the voting age to 16 across the UK, as is already the case in Scotland and Wales.
 - b) Support the provision of high quality Citizenship education in all schools, including appropriate training for teachers and discreet curriculum time.
 - c) Abandon the flawed Elections Bill, which will act to deter voter turnout through the introduction of ID requirements at polling stations.

Motion 5: Support for Borough, Bankside and the Wider Area

This motion was considered after the guillotine having fallen.

There was one amendment to the motion.

Amendment E was put to the vote and declared to be <u>carried</u>.

The substantive motion was put to the vote and declared to be <u>carried</u>.

Note: This motion will be referred as a recommendation to the cabinet for consideration.

- 1. Council assembly notes that:
 - Southwark is home to some of the UK's most significant cultural and historical locations in Bankside, Borough and North Bermondsey.
 - b) The area's history goes back to the earliest days of London, with Anglo-Saxon and Roman settlements. It has historic links with the lives and works of Chaucer, Shakespeare, and Dickens. This rich historic heritage continues with Shakespeare's Globe and the remains of the Rose Theatre.
 - c) The area is still a cultural hub for London. In 2019, the Tate Modern was the second most visited attraction in England with six million visitors.

- 2. Council assembly identifies that:
 - a) The Covid-19 pandemic has affected the area and its businesses. In October 2020, Better Bankside Business Improvement District said that footfall was about half what the area experiences for that time of year.
 - b) There is a need to continue to support the area and its businesses recover from the pandemic. Continuing to promote the area's heritage and associated tourism will play a part in any such revival.
 - c) Throughout the Covid-19 pandemic the council has provided a large amount of support for business across the borough. In Borough and Bankside, 428 business where supported to the value of £3.64 million.
 - d) We must continue to protect and celebrate its historic cultural heritage.
 - e) There are a number of heritage protections in place for Bankside. In addition to the listed buildings and scheduled Monuments, we also have the Borough High Street Conservation Area and the Thames Policy Area.
 - f) Southwark Council's Culture and Events team has directly invested over £13.3million in our cultural and heritage offer since 2010, in addition the sector has received funding from several non-culture specific grant programmes.
 - g) The council has been able to open the Southwark Heritage Centre and Walworth Library at a time that other local authorities are reducing their commitment to funding heritage projects.
 - h) Southwark Council takes its role as the custodian of the historic environment very seriously. Southwark has stated its vision is to preserve, conserve, celebrate and enhance Southwark's unique, but also fragile and irreplaceable historic environment. The Heritage Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) plays a vital part in designing a heritage strategy for Southwark that identifies what people value about their heritage and how it plays an active role in community life. The council welcomes proposals from the local community for locally listed buildings, in line with the criteria set out in the Heritage SPD.
 - i) Southwark is a rich ecological resource with its parks and open

spaces home to various species of birds, fish, mammals, wildflowers and invertebrates. The New Southwark Plan introduces 21 new Sites of Importance for Nature Conservation (SINCs) to protect the future ecological diversity of Southwark.

j) The council has supported cultural institutions within that area including bringing the Africa centre to Southwark, which the council has given assistance in growing the centre from their HQ building to include arches on the Low Line; supporting the Central School of Ballet; and are collaborating with community groups to deliver a new permanent LGBTQ+ centre at Bankside.

3. Council assembly calls on cabinet to:

- a) Launch and deliver a cultural recovery plan ensuring that Southwark continues to be a borough for cultural excellence; collect, conserve and celebrate our local history for future generations and enable all of our diverse communities to have access to cultural opportunities while protecting, preserving and growing our cultural venues, spaces and provision.
- b) Continue to support business and cultural institutions in Borough and Bankside and across the whole of Southwark. The council must continue to champion the role heritage plays in Southwark's cultural life while reaffirming that it is the basis of Southwark's distinct character and allure.
- c) Continue to acknowledge the great benefit in the many diverse voices through musical, literary and artistic creative events that are delivered through cultural groups, open spaces, libraries, heritage centres, museums, theatres, galleries and venues across Southwark.
- d) Continue the Council's work in supporting heritage and culture with the understanding that history, and how people interpret the value of historic places, looks very different depending upon who you are and where you are looking.
- e) Continue to amplify the many different voices that contribute to making Southwark so special, including social, communal, cultural, economic, spiritual, political, activist, artistic, and literary experiences and these reflect personal matters of belief, gender, sexuality, race, ethnicity, age, mobility. All have equally important histories that must be preserved, recorded and protected.

Motion 6: Centenary Celebrations for Ada and Alfred Salter

This motion was considered after the guillotine having fallen.

There were no amendments to the motion.

The motion was put to the vote and declared to be carried.

Note: This motion will be referred as a recommendation to the cabinet for consideration.

1. Council assembly notes:

- a) 2022 marks the centenary of Ada Salter becoming Mayor and Dr Alfred Salter being elected MP. The Salters were a legendary and much loved couple, who became famous locally and nationally.
- b) Ada left a well off home in the Midlands to do social work amongst the city slums. Alfred gave up a brilliant medical career to become a local doctor. Together they dedicated their lives to the people of Bermondsey and Rotherhithe.
- c) Their pioneering work on the environment, housing and public health was transformational. Ada's Beautification Committee planted 9,000 trees and filled public spaces with flowers, playgrounds, music and sport. She designed model council housing and supported women factory workers. Alfred promoted free medical treatment, a solarium, a convalescent home for mothers, and health education by cinema vans on the streets. As Quakers, they both campaigned tirelessly for peace.
- d) The Salters' key issues environment, housing and public health are even more crucial today, as we face a climate crisis, worldwide homelessness and a global pandemic.

2. Council assembly welcomes the fact that:

- a) Community activists have set up a Salter Centenary Project to celebrate the Salters' vision and continue their inspiring legacy.
- b) Dame Judi Dench has become their patron, giving her support as a fellow Quaker and enthusiastic environmentalist.
- c) The project will create and support events and activities in the spirit of Ada and Alfred, so their principles are carried forward into the future.

- 3. Council assembly calls on the cabinet to:
 - Celebrate the inspiration of Ada and Alfred Salter in their centenary year by providing resources, for instance to organise a Salter exhibition from the local studies archives.
 - b) Support the Salter Centenary Project in its community activities, such as environmental plans for greening the area.
 - c) Invite civic representatives and residents from Ada's home town of Raunds to join the centenary celebrations.

Motion 7: Transport for London funding

This motion was considered prior to the guillotine having fallen.

Councillor Michael Situ moved the motion. Councillor Kath Whittam seconded the motion.

There was one amendment to the motion. Councillor Nick Johnson moved Amendment F. Councillor Hamish McCallum seconded Amendment F.

Following debate (Councillors Catherine Rose, Ian Wingfield, Peter John), Amendment F was put to the vote and declared to be lost.

The motion was put to the vote and declared to be <u>carried</u>.

Note: This motion will be referred as a recommendation to the cabinet for consideration.

- This Council Assembly is appalled by the Government's lack of concern for the future funding of London's transport system. With less than three weeks to go before the emergency deal with Transport for London (TfL) expires on 11 December 2021, there is still no certainty on long-term funding.
- 2. Council assembly believes that:
 - a. This continued uncertainty poses a grave threat to Londoners' jobs, livelihoods and health; the delivery of new homes; and efforts to address the climate emergency. Not only is the capital struggling to emerge from the Covid-19 pandemic both socially and economically but TfL itself has lost valuable traveller revenue which undercuts its business model.
 - b. The alternative to guaranteed funding would be drastic cuts in 24

public transport services, such as:

- i. An 18% cut in bus services leading to a withdrawal of 100 routes and less frequent services on 200 more;
- ii. A 9% cut in underground services resulting in reduced maintenance and the scrapping of the Bakerloo Line extension:
- iii. Stopping the introduction of new electric buses;
- iv. Cutting funding to local road improvements including no more cycle lanes and 20mph zones, and the closure of Rotherhithe Tunnel:
- v. And a consequent increase in bus and tube fares.
- c. The effect of these cuts would cause widespread disruption and gridlock across the capital, unfairly punishing millions of Londoners, and would put both London's and the national economic recovery at risk. Without urgent Government investment to plug a £1.9 billion funding gap there will be a resultant 'managed decline' in services creating a 'vicious circle' of under-investment and service cuts resulting in an infrequent and unreliable transport system.
- London's public transport system desperately needs a proper funding settlement from the Government. It is vital to the national recovery from Covid-19, and it is vital to creating a sustainable, green future. London's commuters and key workers deserve a world-class public transport system - not drastic cuts and fare hikes.
- 4. This Council Assembly therefore calls upon the Leader and the Cabinet to liaise with the Mayor for London, the GLA and London Councils to lobby the Government to guarantee the future funding settlement for TfL.

6. REPORTS FOR DECISION

6.1 NEW CIVIC AWARD - DIVERSITY

After debate (Councillor Alice Macdonald), the recommendations were put to the vote and declared <u>Carried</u>.

RESOLVED:

1. That further to a motion agreed by council assembly in July 2019, council assembly agreed to create an additional new Civic Award, which specifically

and additionally recognises and values the importance of enabling Southwark to be a welcoming, inclusive, fair, tolerant, cohesive and integrated borough, which values and celebrates the rich diversity of the borough and promotes good community relations, so that all feel welcome, safe and included. One award is to be made each year based on the criteria set out in paragraphs 11-14 of the report.

2. To agree that Southwark Together be the name of the new Civic Award.

6.2 TREASURY MANAGEMENT - MID-YEAR UPDATE 2021-22

The recommendations were put to the vote and declared Carried.

RESOLVED:

- 1. That council assembly note the 2021-22 mid-year treasury management update report and that:
 - all treasury management activity was undertaken in compliance with the approved treasury management strategy and within the council's prudential indicators, as Appendix A
 - the balance outstanding on all external debt as at 30 September 2021 was £826m.
 - in the six months to 30 September 2021 the average investment balance was £179m and the balance of investments at 30 September 2021 stood at £143m.

6.3 WAIVER OF SIX MONTH COUNCILLOR ATTENDANCE RULE - SECTION 85 OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972

The recommendations were put to the vote and declared Carried.

RESOLVED:

- 1. That in accordance with Section 85 of the Local Government Act 1972, council assembly approved Councillor Anood Al-Samerai's non-attendance at meetings until 1 April 2022 on the grounds of parental responsibility (maternity leave).
- 2. That in accordance with Section 85 of the Local Government Act 1972, council assembly approved Councillor Lauder's non-attendance at meetings until the end of the 2021/22 municipal year (5 May 2022) on the grounds of continued ill health.

6.4 RE-APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT PERSON

The recommendations were put to the vote and declared <u>Carried</u>.

RESOLVED:

1. That council assembly approved the re-appointment of the independent person named in the closed report for a further period of three years.

7. AMENDMENTS

The amendments are set out in supplemental agenda no. 2.

8. RE-APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT PERSON - CLOSED

The decision was as per item 6.4.

The meeting closed at 10.30 pm.

CHAIR:

DATED: